
 
 

 
STATE OF DELAWARE 

Appoquinimink School District 
        
 

April 13, 2018 
 
 

TO:  ALL OFFERORS   
 
FROM:  Bob Hershey  
   
SUBJECT: ADDENDUM TO REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 9:  
  Appoquiniminink School District 
  Fairview Campus New Middle School and High School 
  Bid Package D 
  
 

ADDENDUM NO. 9 
 

TO 
 

The bid due date for Bid Package ‘D’ has been extended. 
Bids are being received until 2:00 p.m. on Thursday, April 19, 2018. 

 
NOTICE:  Attach this addendum to the project manual for this project.  It modifies and becomes 
a part of the contract documents.  Work for materials not specifically mentioned herein are to be 
described in the main body of the specifications and as shown on the drawings.  Bidders shall 
acknowledge receipt of this addendum on the space provided on the Bid Form.  Failure to do so 
may subject the bidder to disqualification. 
 
The contract documents for the above referenced project are amended as follows: 
 
GENERAL CLARIFICATIONS:  

1. Contractors are to provide pricing for Alternates described in Specification Section 
012300 and the contract specific bid form only.  Disregard any alternates that are 
described in the technical specification that are not associated with alternates 
described in Section 012300.  If there are any alternates in the technical specifications 



that are not described in Section 012300, then that work shall be included in the base 
bid. 

 
 
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS: 

330. Sheet A-116 : Glass display cases are shown on either side of Lobby B100B.  This is 
not reflected in the enlarged floor plans provided on A6/A-405 and A6/A-488. 
a. See Addendum No 9. 
 

331. Sheet A-447 : Provide framing design for acoustical reflectors.  Is tube steel support 
required? 
a. See Addendum No 9 
 

332. We have a substantial number of projects where WEC metal lockers have been 
installed that we could use as a reference for you.  Please see our cover letter with 
our Substitution Request form, and our Product Comparison attached to this email.  
Let me know if there is anything else that we need to do to have our WEC products 
approved for this project. 
a. Approved.  See Addendum No 9. 
 
 

333. Please provide elevations, details or model numbers for display and trophy cases. 
a. See Addendum No 9. 
 

334. Please provide details for the serpentine benches at stair F - B199F. 
a. See A-710 issued with Addendum No 5. 
 

335. Provide sheet A448. 
a. There is no sheet A-448. 
 

336. We need more details for the wood wall paneling in the lobby. The elevations on 
A472 are not enough to accurately quote this work. Specifically doorways, returns 
and walls that return toward the stairways at each side of the Auditorium. 
a. See Addendum No 9. 
 

337. Please see attached manufacturer substitution request from Platinum Visual Systems 
for the visual display boards. We have installed this brand many times in public 
schools and they are good.  Please let us know if acceptable. 



a. Approved.  See Addendum No 9. 
 

338. We are seeking approval of our Versa-Dek LS ES Acoustical as a suitable equivalent 
to the specified Toris A deck by Epic Metals called out in the plans and specifications 
for this public school project.  The Toris A is a proprietary deck with a profile that no 
other deck manufacturer has an exact match too.   Our Versa-Dek LS ES Acoustical is 
an acoustical dovetail shaped deck that is very similar in appearance to the Toris A 
deck.   It can offer the same acoustical (NRC) value and structural capabilities as the 
Toris A deck.   Oftentimes, the Versa-Dek LS ES Acoustical can also offer 
considerable cost savings over the Toris brand of dovetail decks.  The following 
documents are enclosed for your review: Versa-Dek LS ES Acoustical NRC test 
report,  ESR-2657 test report, side by side product comparison, substitution request 
form and a letter outlining the deck profile that we are seeking approval on for this 
project.   Please contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 
a. Acceptable equivalent as long as the 20 gage deck thickness and triple span 

condition are met. 
 

339. ADDENDUM #4 ISSUES- PAGE 18- ITEM cc DETAIL A8 DOES NOT EXIST ON 
PAGE A-403.  WE BELIEVE THAT IS SHOULD BE D7. 
a. Correct.  Sheet has been re-organized.  Detail D7 is now Detail A8. 
 

340. Paragraph 1.01.A States “The door hardware sets represent the design intent and 
direction of the owner and architect. They are a guideline only and should not be 
considered a detailed hardware schedule. Discrepancies, conflicting hardware and 
missing items should be brought to the attention of the architect with corrections 
made prior to the bidding process. Omitted items not included in a hardware set 
should be scheduled with the appropriate additional hardware required for proper 
application and functionality.”  How is it expected that the contractors properly bid 
this specification? Why are the bidders responsible for bringing discrepancies and 
conflicts to the attention of the architect? 
a. The intent of this statement is to request that omissions and discrepancies be 

noted during bidding, so that a response can be issued by addendum.  In 
addition, supplemental trim, fasteners, and other miscellaneous items shall be 
provided for a functional opening. 

 
341. Some drawings got messed up in this Addendum: A-145 is missing,  SVC-402 is 

labelled SV 02 and the title block is jibberish.  SVC-405 is labelled SVC 05 and the 
title block is jibberish 



a. Drawings SVC-405 and SVC-402 were reissued with addendum no 6.   Delete A-
145 from list of Addendum no 6 attachments. 

 
342. Provide specification sections for fire blankets and goggle cabinets. 

a. See Addendum No 7 
 

343. On Drawing A-116, Doors B101A, B101B, and B101H show a door with a sidelight 
which agrees with the door schedule’s frame type 3. The larger scale drawing A6/A-
405 however shows single doors with a VP5 next to them. Please clarify which is 
required. 
a. Door with sidelite is correct. 
 

344. At Office B101K on Drawing A-116, it shows what looks like a VP on the east wall 
but when you look at the blow-up on A6/A-405 it shows nothing in that wall. 
Clarification is needed here, too. 
a. VP6 is on east wall; VP7 is on north wall 
 

345. It looks like a VP on the east wall in Room SRO B102M on A-116 but it isn’t called 
out there or on the blow-up A4/A-488. 
a. VP6 is on east wall of SRO B102M. 

346. Can you tell us what the intent is for the layer of material depicted in a typical GFRC 
column section as illustrated below? 
a. The line depicts the thickness of the material near the base. 
 

347. Will elevations/model numbers for the student islands in typ rooms shown in 
A1/A403 be issued or are these not part of the contract? 
a. Details are part of the specifications revised in Addendum 9 
 

348. Are the student tables in rooms typ of B125 & B230 shown in A4 & A7/A403 to be 
included in the contract?  If so, please provide model numbers 
a. Loose student tables will be part of FFE contract.  Note that built-in octagonal 

student workstations shall be provided as part of science casework. 
 

349. Section 123553.19, section 2.02, paragraph 7 calls for worktop supports for a teacher 
demo unit.  There are no teacher demo units shown on the plan.  Is this correct?  I 
find it odd that there are so many labs and NONE have a teacher demo unit. 
a. There are no teacher demo units. 
 



350. Sheet I-001: General finish sheet note O & P states that Rondec is to be provided at 
top of the tile wainscot and outside corners. Sheet A-421 elevation D1 states Schluter 
System Quadec is to be provided. Please clarify what the edge finish is to be, there is 
a cost difference between Quadec and Rondec. Please also confirm if it is to be 
stainless steel or brushed stainless. 
a. Rondec corners to be provided- brushed, stainless. 
 

351. The scheduled Porcelain tile base does not integrate with the wall tile and is not 
designed for that application. The base has a bullnose top and it does not come from 
the manufacturer with a flat top so tile can be set on top of it. Please specify a new 
detail for where tile wainscot/wall tile meets the floor finish. We can run tile all the 
way to the floor and use a Schluter Stainless Cove if Resinous and other flooring can 
integrate with that. 
a. PTB-1 (not a cove or bull nose) base to be wall tile to floor transition with caulk. 
 

352. Some bathrooms have a resinous base scheduled and some do not, even though they 
are connected baths (for ex: A121 and A122). Since the Porcelain tile cove base does 
not integrate with the wall tile should we assume all bathrooms that have resinous 
floor get resinous base? 
a. Any restrooms with porcelain wall tile shall receive porcelain tile base (PTB-1) 

(not a cove or bullnose) - wall tile to floor transition with caulk. 
 

353. Sheet 1-001: General finish sheet note Q references sheet A-476 which can not be 
found. Please provide sheet A-476 along with any other missing interior elevation 
sheet which may be missing and relevant to the project as sheets A-471 through A-
480 are missing. 
a. Note Q should reference sheet A-471.After sheet A-472, the next sheet in this 

series is A-481 
 

354. Sheet A-470: Please clarify to what height CWT-1 and CWT-2 are to go up to in 
elevation F1? 
a. CWT-1 to run floor to ceiling. CWT-2 is an accent tile- see interior elevations for 

heights. 
 

355. Sheet I-603: The finish schedule states that a PT3 and PT4 wainscot is to be provided 
in stairs F, G, J, and K. No elevations referencing pattern and location could be 
found. Please clarify and provide locations and patterns. 



a. Stairs G, J and K have no tile wainscot - just paint. @ Stair F, Pattern is identical to 
that on 4/A-369 at HS Cafeteria.Tiles used :  PT-3 12" x 24", PT-6 Bullnose Trim, 
PT-7 6" x 24" 

 
356. Sheets I-601 through I-603: Throughout the finish schedule, there are bathrooms 

referencing PT-1,2, and 12 and bathrooms referencing PT1 and 2. However, when 
looking at ceramic wall tile elevations, no difference can be seen. Please clarify 
differences. 
a. No difference- all elevations should read PT 1, 2 and 12. 
 

357. Sheet A-369: Elevation 1 and 6 shows PT-5 and PT-6 going full height in the cafeteria. 
However, PT-6 is a 3x12 bullnose. Is this meant to say PT-5 and PT-8 instead? 
a. Yes. PT-5 and 8 are to be used. 
 

358. There are several corridors that receive wall tile. Please provide elevations and 
highlight/mark corridors where tile is to be installed. We will need to know which 
walls are to receive the wainscot with start and stop points. 
a. Please refer to finish plans for areas receiving wainscot tile.  Elevations for the 

corridor tile patterns are provided on Sheet A-471. 
 

359. Sheet A-114: A note in the cafeteria says refer to A-124 which is non existent. Please 
provide sheet A-124 along with any other drawings possible missing. 
a. Refer to Sheet A-125. 
 

360. Wall tile elevations for the cafeteria and servery areas are deceptive. Can you please 
provide a floor plan showing extent of what walls get tiled? 
a. Please see A-370 for servery elevations 
 

361. Are the wall openings in the servery walls to get tiled? 
a. Yes- with Rondec edges- brushed, stainless. 
 

362. How do we finish tile at outside corners in cafeteria/servery walls? Schluter 
Rondec/Quadec or bullnose? 
a. Yes- with Rondec edges- brushed, stainless. 
 

363. Please provide location of toilet A209. No reference to bathroom size or location can 
be found in floor plan or enlarged bathroom plans. 
a. Delete from Finish Schedule- Not used 



 
364. Please provide by location of toilet A241. No reference to bathroom size or location 

can be found in floor plan or enlarged bathroom plans. 
a. Delete from Finish Schedule- Not used 
 

365. Sheet I-601: Bathroom B132 is shown as having no tile. However, enlarged bathroom 
plan A-423 show it having tile. Please clarify. 
a. Add tile at B132 - PT -1, 2 and 12 
 

366. Sheet A-123 is showing VP6 and VP 9 on an exterior wall overlooking a roof. I would 
think this need to be exterior windows correct? 

Correct.  See Addendum No 6. 
 

367. Sections 2,6/ S514 and other sections show the HSS 6 X 6 X 1/4" that picks up the cold 
form mansard framing only on the outside, does the inside of framing also get a HSS 
running parallel to the outside piece? 
a. Yes.  Refer to the “Typical Roof Truss Mansard Detail” on Drawing S-511 for 

additional information. 
 

368. Please confirm if all the wall types inside are to have abrasion resistant drywall up to 
8’-0. 
a. See 092116, 2.03C. 
 

369. Need better details for visual display boards for these rooms B125, B230, B228, C107, 
C108, C120, C124, C126 
a. See A-456 issued with Addendum No 6, and A-403 issued with Addendum No 9. 
 

370. Requesting to add Gordon to list of acceptable metal column enclosure suppliers. See 
attached 
a. Approved.  See Addendum No 9. 
 

371. Please see our attached request to have Janson Industries listed as an approved 
contractor/manufacturer on the stage curtains/rigging for the Fairview Campus 
Middle and High Schools. 
a. Approved. 
 

372. Please help me what is wall type 12A?  shown on A113 which are the curved walls of 
the Auditorium.  I cant find or recall any addendums adding wall type 12 to the 



schedule on A-003 which only goes up to wall type 11.  The only double walls 
indicated are Wall type 10, but the other walls may be an 8” and 6” wall if I were to 
scale them, so I am not sure what to price. 
a. Partition Type 12A is similar to Partition Type 10A, except that the Auditorium 

side studs are 8" instead of 6". 
 

373. Sheet A-118 calls out an elevation for display cases A-470 G1. There is no G1 on A-
470 
a. See schedule of display cases provided in Addendum No 9. 
 

374. Fume hoods are not elevated with base cabinets similar to wood lab casework 
construction per the fume hood spec. Please advise if wood base cabinets or metal 
support deck is intended. New Question. 
a. Provide wood base cabinets to match science casework in room.  Maintain a 30" 

wide knee space under fume hood.  Fume hood shall be ADA compliant. 
 

375. For Fairview School, the roller shade written specification section 122413 -2.01.A.1 
indicates a Draper shade & the Mecho M-5 shade.  The 2 types of shades listed, are 
completely different & are not equal to each other.  The Draper FlexShade is uses a 
rollease clutch, made by General Clutch & has a short life span expectancy vs. the M-
5 from Mecho Shade which offers a 25 year, non-depreciating warranty.  I realize 
today is the last day for RFI’s.  To provide Appoquinimck School District with a 
viable shade, can you request that the Basis of Design from Draper is changed to the 
Draper FlexShade XD?  The XD bracket is a M-5 knock-off, with-out many of the 
features the M-5 offers.  It is a more robust bracket & is more in line pricing than the 
standard rollease clutch. 
a. See Addendum No 9. 
 

376. Section 116625, paragraph 2.03.A.1.b. specifies the lower section of the divider 
curtains to be vinyl but does not provide a height.  What height should the lower 
vinyl be for the divider curtains? 
a. Provide vinyl up to 8'-0" AFF. 
 

377. Section 116625, paragraph 2.05 specifies the volleyball equipment but does not 
provide quantities to be provided, it would be possible to have (4) volleyball systems 
in use at one time with the volleyball sleeve layout.  How many of each volleyball 
item in paragraph 2.05 are required? 
a. Provide 8 sleeves per drawings. 



 
378. Section 116625, paragraph 2.06.A. specifies a wrestling mat.  Are wrestling mats to be 

included in this bid package (generally these are purchased by the school directly as 
a part of the FFE package)?  If wrestling mats are to be included, how many are 
desired and what sizes (assumed to be sectional – 15’-0” by 45’-0” to fit the specified 
mat hoist)? 
a. Provide one (1) reversible (practice circles on one side, match configuration on 

obverse) competition mat @ 45' X 45'. Confirmed, for storage it is assumed it will 
be in 3 sections of 15'-0"W 

 
379. Section 116625, paragraph 2.06.B. specifies a wrestling mat hoist.  Drawing A-118 

indicates one mat hoist for the base bid high school gym but one is not called for 
with the alternate high school gym.  Can you confirm that only one mat hoist is 
required and it is for the base bid high school gym only? 
a. Drawing A-118A is incorrect. A mat hoist will be required for the Alternate 

gymnasium; location is TBD 
 

380. Section 116625, paragraph 2.07.A. specifies a gym equipment group control system 
but the electrical drawings indicate key-switch operation.  Can you confirm if the 
control system is to be provided and if so, how many control systems should be 
provided per gym? 
a. Provide 2 control stations per gymnasium; locations TBD. 
 

381. Section 116625, paragraph 2.07.C.3. specifies a Performance Sports Systems:  Product 
No. 4030 for the divider curtain, the equivalent curtain, which utilizes cables like the 
other two models specified, is the 4020 fold-up curtain.  Can this model number be 
modified to 4020 fold-up? 
a. No, provide specified roll-up model (from Performance or an equivalent 

alternative manufacturer) 
 

382. Section 116625, paragraph 2.07.D. specifies a floor cover and transport system.  Can 
you provide the areas where this is to be provided, so the square footage needed can 
be determined? 
a. The floor covering system should be adequate to protect all wood areas within a 

gymnasium; base bid or alternate flooring is to be accommodated. 
 



383. Section 116625, paragraph 2.07.E.1. specifies a full color, red or amber message center 
for the scoreboard at the end of the paragraph.  Can a model number and quantity 
be provided for the message center that is desired? 
a. See Addendum no 9 
 

384. Section 116625, paragraph 2.07.E.1.a. specifies 2750 model number that does not 
match the description in the paragraph above.  The Nevco model number to match 
the description would be a 2780.  Can you confirm which model number scoreboard 
is the basis of design? 
a. See Addendum no 9 
 

385. The middle school gym requires one scoreboard, the base bid high school gym 
requires two scoreboards and the drawings do not indicate a scoreboard for the 
alternate high school gym.  Drawing S138.A indicates steel being installed for a four-
sided scoreboard.  Will a four-sided scoreboard be required for the alternate high 
school gym?  If so, can a specification be provided for this? 
a. The overhead scoreboard has been eliminated; refer to RCP.                                                                                                                                                      

Two wall mounted scoreboards will be required at either base bid or alternate 
HS gymnasium. 

 
386. Are shot clocks required for the high school gym base bid and/or alternate gym?  If 

so, please provide a specification? 
a. Confirmed, shot clocks will be required for either base bid or alternate HS 

gymnasia.  Daktronics Model BB-2114. 
 

387. Section 116625, paragraph 2.07.G. specifies a wrestling timer but none could be 
found on the drawings.  Can a quantity and location be provided for the wrestling 
timer? 
a. Provide 2 timers, locations TBD. 
 

388. Section 116625, paragraph 2.07.H. specifies a free standing scorer’s table, will this be 
included in this bid package (generally these are purchased by the school directly as 
a part of the FFE package)?  If so, how many are required? 
a. Provide 1 scorer's table per specifications. 
 

389. Section 116623, paragraph 2.09.A.4. and 2.09.A.4. each specify a different style of 
foam for the wall pads.  Which foam is required? 



a. 2.09 A.5 is correct (delete 2.09.A.4).  Note also that foam thickness should be 2” 
(not 1-1/2”), as 2” is a standard thickness for wall padding mfrs. 

 
390. Drawing A-112 indicates wall padding continuous on the North, West and East 

walls but drawing A-471 indicates breaks in the padding.  Can you confirm which 
plan should be followed to determine the quantity of padding? 
a. The padding is intended to be continuous and is to be 'framed' to go above 

and/or below (as appropriate) any doors, alcoves, windows, etc 
 

391. Drawing A-118 and A-118.A states the two main court basketball hoops as type 1 
and the side court basketball hoops as type 2.  Can you provide the difference 
between type 1 and type 2, as the specifications do not distinguish this? 
a. All basketball standards are to be type 1. 
 

392. Drawings S132, S138 and S138.A indicate L-angle steel for the basketball hoops, 
wrestling mat hoist and divider curtains.  Can these be changed to I-beams to allow 
for proper attachment, these would also be located by the gym equipment 
manufacturer? 
a. This proposed revision is acceptable; final approval will be per the structural 

engineer in shop drawing review. 
 

393. Will the base bid and alternate high school gym be smoke protected? 
a. Neither gym option will have smoke protected seating. 
 

394. Can it be confirmed the floor finish for the mezzanine in the alternate high school 
gym will be SC-1 (sealed concrete), as indicated on I-128.A? 
a. I-128.A (as clarified in Addendum No 9) the finish tag calls for RSP-1 (Mondo 

Sports Flex M). 
 

395. Section 126613, paragraph 2.02.A.6. specifies removable rails at row two behind the 
wheel chair spaces.  These are not required by code and are very cumbersome to set 
up and would require quite a bit of storage space.  Will removable rails be required 
at the recoverable ADA spaces? 
a. Provide removable rails as specified. 
 

396. Section 126613, paragraph 2.02.C.2. specifies rise per row 10”.  The drawings seem to 
indicate 16” rise at all seating but it was our understanding that all bleachers should 
be 9-5/8” row rise (10” nominal) and only 16” rise at the mezzanine of the alternate 



high school gym.  Can you confirm all row rise should be 9-5/8” row rise (10” 
nominal) except at the mezzanine of the alternate high school gym, which should be 
16” row rise? 
a. Provide 16" row rise typical. 
 

397. Section 126613, paragraph 2.02.C.3. specifies row depth of 22”.  The drawings seem 
to show 26” row spacing at all rows.  Can you advise if the row spacing of the 
bleachers should be 26”? 
a. Provide 26" row spacing. 

398. Section 126613, paragraph 2.03.A.2. specifies seats with back supports as shown.  
Can you confirm back supports are not required, as these are not indicated or 
possible with narrow row spacing? 
a. Seat back supports are not required. 
 

399. Section 126613, paragraph 2.03.B.2. specifies 3/4" plywood thickness, all 
manufacturer’s standard plywood thickness is 5/8”.  Will 5/8” thick plywood 
decking be acceptable? 
a. Provide 3/4" plywood as specified. 
 

400. Section 126613, paragraph 2.03.B.6. specifies extruded aluminum nosings, all 
manufacturer’s standard nose is galvanized steel (as specified in 2.03.B.3.).  Will 
galvanized steel nosing be acceptable? 
a. Galvanized steel nosings are acceptable. 
 

401. Section 126613, paragraph 2.05.B.1. and 2.05.B.2. specify plywood end panels and 
vinyl end curtains, respectively.  Only one of these can be provided, not both.  Can 
you confirm which should be provided and that all bleachers should receive these, 
except the four units that run wall to wall at the mezzanine of the alternate high 
school gym? 
a. Plywood is intended at permanently retracted rows; provide vinyl at extendable 

rows. Confirmed that this arrangement is required for all lower level bleachers. 
 

402. Section 126613, paragraph 2.05.D. specifies a video platform but none is shown on 
the drawings.  Will a video platform be required, if so, how large (these are available 
in 4’-0” by 4’-0” sections and can be semi-permanent or portable)? 
a. Provide 12'-0" by 4'-0" platform; location TBD. 
 



403. Please provide by location of toilet A241. No reference to bathroom size or location 
can be found in floor plan or enlarged bathroom plans. 
a. Toilet A 241 deleted - not used. 
 

404. Volume III Sheet I-601: Bathroom B132 is shown as having no tile. However, 
enlarged bathroom plan A-423 Volume II show it having tile. Please clarify. 
a. Add tile at B132 - PT -1, 2 and 12 
 
 

405. Please provide the location of bathrooms C314 and C316. No reference to bathroom 
size or location can be found in floor plan or enlarged bathroom plans. 
a. Bathrooms C314 and C316 are not in project- not used. 
 

406. Please provide location of CWT-1 in D105. 
a. No CWT-1 in D105. 
 

407. Sheet A-422: D107A and D114 are shown as having tile on elevation B1 and B2. 
However, the finish schedule states no tile is to be installed. Please clarify? 
a. @ D107A - Painted Block; @ D114 - Typical tile pattern using PT-1, 2 and 12 
 

408. Sheet A-425 Volume II: Are bathrooms E101L and E101G which are part of 
alternative plan H to receive tile? 
a. No tile scheduled - painted block 
 

409. Please provide location of bathroom A204. Asst. Princ A204 can be found but toilet 
A204 is nowhere to be found. Please clarify. 
a. There is no bathroom A204. You are correct A204 is Assistant Principal. 
 

410. Please provide location of Toilet A209 and A241. 
a. Delete from Finish Schedule- Not used 
 

411. Sheet I-602 Volume III: C100D, C100E, C100H, C100J, AND C100K all have notes 
pertaining to ceramic tile but list no wainscot finish. Are these areas to receive wall 
tile? 
a. No wall tile 
 

412. Sheet I-601/I-603 Volume III: Several corridors and Common areas have wainscot 
finishes pertaining to two tiles only. For examples Corridor D100A on sheet I-602 



and Corridor C200B on sheet I-603. No wainscot finish elevation can be found which 
pertains to two tiles only as they both list. The only two wainscot elevations are 
provided on sheet A-471.  Please clarify finish and provide elevations if needed. 
a. All corridor elevations on A-471 apply to C200B - as noted, PT-3, PT-6. D100A 

and D100B receive paint. 
 
 

413. Please specify location of PT-11. PT-11 could not be found on any elevations and was 
not mentioned anywhere on the finish schedule. Please clarify. 
a. PT-11 is not used. 
 

414. Is CWT 1 and 2 to be installed in all walls in room B110 and B112. If not please 
specify walls in room B110. 
a. B110 - @ all walls 
 

415. Sheet 1-001 Volume III: Finish Schedule Key Note N5 states that PTB-2 base is to be 
provided along with RT1-4 as an alternate. However, no reference to this finish is 
found anywhere in the finish legend and notes or in Section 012300 Alternates. 
Please clarify what PTB-2 is and what alternate note N5 falls into. 
a. Delete PTB-2. Please refer to specification section 012300 for alternates. 
 

416. Unable to locate an elevation and/or a note height and pattern for some corridors I 
have interpreted and taken off Wainscot PT3 & PT6 as; PT3-5’6” high & PT6-6’3” 
high Bull nose.  There is more but this gets the point across.. last column is Wainscot.  
Other corridors used a 5 tile pattern and detailed on dwg A471 / B4 & B1. 
a. Typical Corridor elevations see Elevation Sheet A471 
 

417. Stairs Wainscot - Some are two (2) tile spec and some are three (3) spec and not able 
to locate an elevation for height and pattern.. 
a. See RFI # 354 for stair F, Stair A same Pattern as H.S Corridor 
 

418. While checking read Finish Schedule dwg I-001 Note 5.  (N5. Alternate; RT1-4 Floor 
Pattern with PTB-2 base).    Note: there is no PTB 2 specified..       I did not see this 
note on the finish plans and I can go back and retrieve the applicable rooms / 
corridors.. 
a. PTB-2 Not used. 
 



419. Section 122413, Part 3.04.A.1, does the statement “all exterior windows” refer to 
Windows Schedule E1 on A-610 Glazing Elevations, only? Or are roller shades also 
required at CW curtainwalls and SF storefronts? 
a. Roller shades are required at windows, storefront or curtainwall of all spaces 

except those listed in Section 122413, Part 3.04.A.1.  Note that Lobbies are 
considered corridors.  Roller shades are not required in Cafeterias. 

420. The summary of work for contract No. D-41:  Theatre Seating, paragraph 2 states to 
provide loose seating but there is no specification for these.  Are loose seats part of 
this scope, if so can a specification be provided for this seating? 
a. Pricing for loose seating is part of Alternate #38 added in this addendum.  

Provide Loose Audience seating in quantities shown on the drawings in finishes 
and shapes to match fixed seating. 

 
421. Will Hussey Seating Company’s Quattro Traditional chair be an acceptable 

manufacturer (substitution request attached)? 
a. The Hussey Quattro Traditional chair is an acceptable manufacturer provided it 

meets all specification criteria for functionality and design. 
 

422. Section 126113, paragraph 2.01.A.1.a. specifies a seat with an injection molded pan 
but paragraph 2.07.F. specifies a seat pan to receive a fully enveloped fabric bottom.  
Which is required for the seating? 
a. The seat shall have an injection molded pan with a seat cushion.  The cushion 

cover shall be removable for authorized maintenance per the specification. 
 

423. Section 126113, paragraph 2.01.A.1.b. specifies a No. 17 Davies back assembly with a 
molded plastic back.  The No. 17 Davies back is only available with a wood veneer, 
laminate or upholstered back.  If a molded plastic back is desired, this would change 
the back No. 91 Millennium back.  Can you confirm if the outer back of the chair is to 
be molded plastic or some other surface? 
a. Seat back should be molded plastic. Provide Millennium back or approved equal. 
 

424. Section 126113, paragraph 2.06.A. does not specify a fabric, in order to accurately 
price the seating a fabric will be needed.  Should we assume manufacturer’s 
standard fabric or is there a specific one desired? 
a. Architect to select fabric from  'Manufacturer's Standard' fabrics.  Submit sample 

book for selection during submittal phase. 
 
 



 
 
 

425. Section 126113, paragraph 2.10.F. specifies a 2” wide by 3/4” thick solid block front 
finished to match the back and seat bottom.  The back and seat bottom are not 
specified to be wood, should the solid block front still be provided for the end panels 
(this could be a potential maintenance issue down the road)? 
a. Yes, provide as specified. Wood finish TBD by Architect.  Irwin #17 radiused 

aisle panel or equivalent panel by other approved mfrs. 
 

426. Will the ADA transfer arms be required to have end panels or will these not be 
required (reference paragraph 2.10.D)? 
a. ADA transfer arms must have end panels per the specification. 
 

427. Will Hussey Seatway of the United Kingdom, model TP of platforms with Gallery 3 
seats be an acceptable manufacturer (substitution request attached)? 
a. No. 
 

428. Section 126623, paragraph 2.09.A. specifies removable and manufacturer’s standard 
guardrails but drawing TS210 indicates fold down rails.  What type of guard/end 
rails are required for this seating? 
a. Provide fold-down rails. 
 

429. Section 126623, paragraph 2.10.E. does not specify a fabric, in order to accurately 
price the seating a fabric will be needed.  Should we assume manufacturer’s 
standard fabric or is there a specific one desired? 
a. Architect to select fabric from  'Manufacturer's Standard' fabrics.  Submit sample 

book for selection during submittal phase. 
 

430. Drawing TS210, detail 3 & 4 indicate that wood fascia boards are required at the 
front of each row.  Can you confirm if these wood fascia boards are required at the 
seating and removable fascia boards at the aisles? 
a. Yes, provide wood fascia boards, paint finish. 
 

431. Ref. Specification section 093000 Tiling, page 3, paragraph 2.02B, Thresholds. We 
note the specifications indicate marble thresholds, however the finish schedule on 
drawing I-001 indicates solid surface thresholds. Please confirm if the thresholds are 
to be made from marble or solid surface material. 



a. Thresholds to be marble per specifications 
 

432. Ref. Specification section 093000 Tiling, page 5, paragraph 3.04A.1, Installation - 
Floor Tile. We note the specifications indicate uncoupling membrane is to be 
installed over “green concrete” unless other underlayment is indicated. We find no 
uncoupling membrane material noted in the specification so we will assume the tile 
work will be installed over cured concrete using the fluid applied membrane as 
indicated in paragraph 2.06A.1 unless advised otherwise. 
a. OK. 
 

433. Ref. Specification section 093000 Tiling, page 5, paragraph 3.06A, Installation – Wall 
Tile. We note the wall tile installation in the toilet rooms is to include membrane. Is 
the waterproofing membrane to be installed 6” up the wall at the floor/wall 
transition only or full height behind all wall tile? 
a. Full height behind wall tile 
 

434. Ref. Specification section 093000 Tiling, page 5, paragraph 3.08C, Protection. We will 
base the protection of the floors on Kraft paper with taped seams with maintenance 
and removal provided by others (as it is impossible to put a price on policing the job 
site to maintain temporary protection after our work is complete and we are off the 
job) unless advised otherwise. 
a. See modifications to the summary of work included in this addendum. 
 

435. Ref. Drawing I-001, Finish Legend and Notes, Finish Schedule Key Notes, Note N5. 
This note references PTB-2 base however we find no PTB-2 base listed in the finish 
schedule. Is PTB-2 base to be used? If so, please provide more information (i.e. 
manufacturer, size, color, etc.) for this finish 
a. PTB-2 Not Used, Delete from Schedule 
 

436. Ref. Specification section 012300 Alternates, page 4, Alternate #14. We note Terrazzo 
floor tiles are to be an alternate in lieu of carpet and VCT where indicated, however 
we find no indication of where the alternates take place.   a.      Please provide 
information as to where Alternate #14 is to take place.  b.      Please confirm the wall 
base finishes required with the terrazzo tile flooring. 
a. See changes to the summary of work included in this addendum.  Refer to 

Structural Plans S114, S115, S116 for the extents of the additional terrazzo tile 
included in Alternate #14.  Please refer to finish plans for wall base finish with 
terrazzo flooring. 



 
437. Ref. specification section 096633 Cement Terrazzo Tiles, page 1, paragraph 1.01A 

Summary. We note the specification indicate Terrazzo tile floor and wall tile. We 
find no terrazzo wall tile on the finish schedule. Is terrazzo tile to be used on the 
walls? If so, where? 
a. No terrazzo wall tile included in this project. 
 

438. Ref. specification section 096633 Cement Terrazzo Tiles, page 3, paragraph 2.06A 
Setting Materials. The specifications reference section 093000 for tile setting 
materials. We will assume the Terrazzo tiles are to be installed with cementitious 
setting and grouting materials unless advised otherwise. 
a. Correct 
 

439. Ref. specification section 096633 Cement Terrazzo Tiles, page 3, paragraph 3.01A 
Installation. The specifications reference section 093000 for tile installation. We will 
assume all terrazzo tile will be installed thin set unless advised otherwise. 
a. As specified, per manufacturer's requirements 
 

440. Ref. Drawing I-001, Finish Legend and Notes, Stair Treads & Risers. We note the 
Color was not selected. Please provide the color for the stair treads and risers as this 
will impact on the price. 
a. Color TZ22 Parchment 
 

441. Ref. drawing S114, Foundation Plan – Area D. We note the area in the HS Cafeteria 
(room D122) depicts a recessed floor with a note for coordination with terrazzo 
joints. Per the finish schedule on drawing this room is to receive RT-1-4 floor 
finishes. We will assume this room is to receive RT-1-4 floor finishes unless advised 
otherwise. 
a. Correct floor to receive RT-1-4 
 

442. Ref drawings I-601, I-602 & I-603, Finish Schedules. We note wall tile finishes are 
noted on stairs A, F, G, H, J & K on some of the finish schedules, however they are 
not shown on the stair drawing A-491 thru A-496. Are wall tile finishes required at 
the stair runs and landings? if so, please provide elevations clarifying the wall tile 
scope. 
a. Stair A and Stair F to receive tile at stair runs and landings.  Stair F See RFI# 354.  

Stair A to is the same pattern as H.S. Corridor (see elev. on Sheet A471 
 



443. Ref. drawing I-601, Finish Schedule, Rooms B200J and B200K. We note PTB-2 base 
finishes are scheduled for these rooms, however we find no PTB-2 base finishes 
noted on the Finish Legend (drawing I-001). Please confirm the base finish required 
for these rooms. 
a. B200J and B200K base to be MRB-1 
 

444. Ref. drawing I-601, Finish Schedule, Rooms B232 and B234. We find no base finishes 
listed for these rooms. Please provide the required base finishes. 
a. Base is PTB-1 
 

445. Ref. drawing I-602, Finish Schedule, Room C103E. We note TRB-1 base finishes are 
listed for this room. Please confirm this is the correct base finish. 
a. Base to be RB-1 
 

446. Ref. drawing I-603, Finish Schedule. We no finishes listed for rooms A200, C399D, 
C399E, E201, GH100. Please advise what finishes are required for these rooms. 
a. A200, C399D, C399E not used.  GH100 Greenhouse P-1E West wall.  E20` 

Finishes RSP-1, RB-1, P-1 
 

447. Ref. specification section 011100 Summary of Work, Contract No. D-34 – Terrazzo 
Tile, Page 39, Item #6. We note protection of the finished terrazzo tile work is 
required however we find no protection materials indicated.    a.      We will base the 
protection of the floors on ramboard with taped seams with maintenance and 
removal provided by others (as it is impossible to put a price on policing the job site 
to maintain temporary protection after our work is complete and we are off the job) 
unless advised otherwise.    b.      Roman Mosaic and Tile Company always excludes 
protection of stairways due to safety concerns. We will assume no protection of the 
stairs will be required unless advised otherwise. 
a. See modifications to the summary of work included in this addendum. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

448. Ref. Specification section 090561 Common Work Results For Flooring Preparation, 
page 1, paragraph 1.02A, Price and Payment Procedures. We note the specification 
indicate a unit price is to be provided for the remedial floor coating, however we 



find no line on the project bid form to provide a unit price. We will assume we are to 
include the vapor retarding sealer as indicated in the scope of work for contacts D-33 
and D-34 unless advised otherwise. 
a. Unit Prices added to the bid forms for flooring contractors.  See updated bid 

forms included in this addendum. 
 

449. Ref. specification section 096633 Cement Terrazzo Tiles, Page 2, paragraph 2.03A, 
Manufactured Units. We note the specification list multiple sizes however it does not 
indicate where they are to be used and there are tile sizes do not match the finishes 
noted on drawing I-001. Please confirm if all the tiles listed are to be used. If so, 
please provide the pattern and where they are being used. 
a. Floor patterns are based on 12"x12" patterns.  12"x24" not used. 
 

450. Ref. specification section 096633 Cement Terrazzo Tiles, Page 4, paragraph 3.03, 
Extended Care and Maintenance. We note the specification indicates periodic 
burnishing and resealing of the terrazzo tile floors. This system is typically installed 
by building maintenance crews after the terrazzo tile installation is complete. Is the 
Terrazzo Tile Contractors work limited to installing, cleaning tile, removing grout 
haze and sealing the terrazzo tile flooring with care and maintenance to be by 
others? 
a. The terrazzo tile contractor is to install the terrazzo tile as specified and provide 

initial cleaning, waxing and protection.  Protection will be with reinforced kraft 
paper, cardboard, or Masonite.  This contractor is not responsible for the 
extended care and maintenance. 
  

451. Ref. drawing I-001, Finish Legend and Notes, Terrazzo Floor Tile. We note the 
terrazzo floor tile finishes listed on the drawings indicate a 12”x12” and 12”x24” tile 
size however we find no tile size pattern noted on the drawings. Please provide 
details to clarify the intended use of the tile sizes indicated. 
a. Floor patterns are based on 12"x12" patterns. 
 

452. Ref. drawing I-001, Finish Legend and Notes, Terrazzo Base. No profile is indicated 
for the terrazzo base. We will assume this is straight base unless advised otherwise. 
a. Straight base 
 

453. Ref. Drawing I-118, First Floor Finish Plan – Area “H”, Lobbies E100B & E100H. We 
note two logos are to be provided in the Terrazzo Tile floor, however we find no 
design for the logos. To appropriately price both logos please provide design 



information (i.e. artwork, number of colors, etc.). If no design information can be 
provided for pricing can an allowance be assigned for the (2) logos? 
a. 6 color logo (allow for custom colors).  Contract D-34 : Terrazzo Tile is to include 

an allowance of $30,000 for the supply and installation of these two logos. 
 

454. Ref. Drawing I-601, Finish Schedule, room A100C. The finish schedule does not 
indicate the finished required for this room. Please provide the floor, base and wall 
finishes for room A100C. 
a. Room Finishes:  TRF1-4, MRB-2 , P-3, PT3-7 
 

455. Ref. Drawing I-601, Finish Schedule. We note multiple rooms indicate TRT floor 
finishes.    a.      We find no TRT floor finishes noted on the finish schedule. Please 
confirm if these finishes to be TRF, Terrazzo Floor Tile finishes?    b.      We note 
rooms A100B, B110G and B105 indicate floor finishes TRT-1 – TRT-5, however we 
find not TRT-1 thru TRT5 noted on the finish schedule. Please confirm the materials 
used for these finishes. 
a. TRT to change to TRF (A100B TRF1,3,4, B105 TRF1-4, B100G TRF1,2,3) 
 

456. Ref. Drawing I-601, Finish Schedule, Stair A. We note the floor finishes indicate a 
TTRS however we do not find this finish on the Finish schedule. Please confirm the 
materials used for the TTRS finish. 
a. Change TTRS to Read TRIS-1 
 

457. Ref. Drawing I-601, Finish Schedule, Room D105D. We note the finish schedule 
indicate floor finishes TRF-1 – TRF-5, however we find no TRF-5 finishes noted on 
the finish schedule. Please provide more information (i.e. manufacturer, size, color, 
etc.) for this finish 
a. Floor Finish to be TRF1-4 
 

458. Attached is a substitution request for Electric Hand Dryer specified in Section 
102800.  Please send me an e-mail confirmation that this request has been submitted 
to the architect. 
a. Not approved.  Incorrect voltage; not a metal cover. 
 

459. Regarding the PAC Lobby, the details are very confusing, are there interior 
elevations provided anywhere?  There are a few finish callouts tagged here and 
there.  Am I to assume that all the walls get a wood wall panel or wood wainscot 
system? 



a. Please see Addendum 9 - Sketch A-784 and A-472 
 

460. Are there details on the wood wainscot anywhere? I See some tags, but no details. 
a. Please see Addendum 9- Sketch A-784 and A-472 
 

461. Do you have details on the display cases that are tagged throughout? 
a. See Addendum No 9 
 

462. In room E101A, It seems as though there is work for us in there, but there are no 
details I can find anywhere . 
a. See Elevation G7/A724.  Sketch issued 3/22/2018 
 

463. In the Middle of room B107 Graphic arts, are all the units in the middle of the room 
furniture by others?  The end caps of those runs are shown to be casework by us. 
a. Furniture to be FF&E 
 

464. In room D119 sports medicine, there is an area that looks like it could be casework, 
but there is no elevation or designation. Are there details? 
a. See H7 /A783 (Sketch Addendum 9) 
 

465. In D121, are there any details for the casework for tag 12.3 (Plastic laminate 
Casework and Solid surface Counter) 
a. See E7/A403 and E8/A403 (Sketch Addendum 9) 
 

466. According to the notes on the RCP the shaded areas indicate 2 layers of 2’x2’ drywall 
in the 2x2 grid, however, the barrel diffusers are also shaded.  Should the 4’x4’ barrel 
areas also have two layers of drywall on top of them as well?  To be Clear- all areas 
not shaded are open (No Ceiling Tile of any type? 
a. Barrel diffusers do not require 2 layers of drywall.  Correct, areas not shaded are 

grid only (no ceiling tile) 
 

467. Please Clarify if the Trapezoidal clouds in the Lobby are drywall on furring or some 
other specialty cloud system?  Provide details and edge conditions if drywall. 
a. These are specialty ceilings (Type PC in Section 095420).  See Addendum No 8. 
 

468. Sheet A-113 calls out 11 of something that looks like lockers 
a. See Drawing A-762 issued with Addendum No 8 
 



469. Need a spec or model for AED cabinets and do we include the AED unit? 
a. See Addendum No 9 
 

470. We submitted substitutions for lockers and addendum 7 added a new spec but our 
substitution isn’t included 
a. See Addendum No 9. 
 

471. Addendum 3, Line 68 mentions a glass marker board specification coming out. I 
have not seen it yet. Will it be issued in next addendum? 
a. See Addendum No 8 
 

472. Specification Section 102800, paragraph 2.02.C lists a triple roll toilet paper 
dispenser. Are there any in the project? 
a. See Addendum No 9 for clarified toilet tissue and paper towel dispensers. 
 

473. Specification Section 102800 does not list Item D, paper towel dispensers. Will these 
be provided by the owner and contractor installed? 
a. See Addendum No 9 for clarified toilet tissue and paper towel dispensers. 
 

474. Specification Section 102800, Item F. The wall mounted soap dispenser is a Hilyard 
Product. Is this item supplied by owner and contractor installed like the other 
Hilyard Products? 
a. Correct.  See Addendum No 9. 
 

475. There are counter mounted soap dispensers located in Women C114, Men C116 and 
Toilet C121. Please provide a specification for this item. 
a. There are no counter-mounted soap dispensers for this project.  See Addendum 

No 9 for toilet accessory clarifications for these rooms. 
 

476. There is no electric hand dryer or paper towel dispenser shown in the handicap stall 
in Toilet E105 and E110. Shouldn’t there be an electric hand dryer in these stalls? 
a. Yes, provide (1) in each stall.   See Addendum No 9. 
 

477. Do all of the Janitor and Custodial Closets receive Item J, shelf and mop holder? 
a. Yes. 
 



478. Specification Section 102800, Item M through Item N, shower rods, hooks and 
curtains. Please confirm that we are to provide these items at the showers in Rooms 
A102G, A125C, E117A and E118A. 
a. Correct.  See Addendum No 9. 
 

479. Specification Section 102800, Item P, Robe Hooks. Are there any in the project? 
a. Yes.  Provide (2) each in Rooms  A102G, A125C, E117A and E118A.  See 

Addendum No 9. 
 

480. Specification Section 102800, Item Q, Folding Shower Seat. Please confirm that we 
are to provide this item in Rooms A102G, A125C, E117A and E118A. 
a. Correct.  See Addendum No 9. 
 

481. Also want to mention that there are no paper towel dispensers and/or soap 
dispensers at any of the classroom sinks, breakroom sinks, etc. 
a. Correct. 
 

482. I’m looking through the drawings and see that there is K-13 Spray Insulation listed 
as Ceiling Type C.  However, I cannot find a specification for it.  Unless it is tucked 
in one of the addendums.  Any clues????  I mainly need to know the color and 
thickness. 
a. See Section 072129 issued in Addendum No 8. 
 

483. It looks like the model number in the specs for the kiln is not a valid number. Our 
supplier is telling us that and I checked the internet and agree.  Reference 
115415.2.02.A. Manufacturer’s Model No. KW1-1027. 
a. See Addendum No 8. 
 
 

484. Addendum 7 item 270 says “Gate hardware is to be provided by Contract D-24: 
Carpentry.”  Shouldn’t this be provided by the door and hardware prime contract D-
26? 
a. Gate hardware is to be provided by the contractor providing the fencing and 

gates.  The requirement for gate hardware by Contract D-24 is being deleted as 
part of this addendum. 

 
485. Working off the Division 10 2239 spec and referring to the drawing in addendum 6 

on 3/29/2018 is Kwik-wall 2030 Folding Panel Partitions an acceptable alternative for 



bidding on the Appoquinimink Fairview Campus project? See attached for the spec 
guide on this operable wall. 
a. Not approved. 
 

486. Can you confirm if there is one set of commercial washer and dryer included in the 
carpentry contract? I see what looks like residential units in D107 and commercial 
ones in E101B. 
a. Residential appliances are not in contract.  Provide commercial washer and dryer 

in Room E101B (1 each). 
 

487. Looking thru the drawings/documents, I do not fully/clearly understand alternate 
#16A and #16B, can you please provide additional information on what we are to 
include in the base bid electrical package and what we are to include in the alternate 
pricing. If possible, please point out on the drawings. The alternates #23 and #24 are 
also on the bid form as they were on bid pack C, please clarify this is the same 
alternates. I also assume that for alternate #28, the gear manufacture will be provided 
in a later addendum? 
a. Drawing E-130:  Alt 16A shell lighting circuits are part of base bid up to the 

associated receptacles.  Shell lighting to be plugged in if provided.  Alt 16B base 
bid is rough in and all wiring up to and including the disconnect switch.  As part 
of Alt provide final connections to MCC.  Gear manufacturer was provided in 
ADD. #8. 

 
488. Can you provide a spec for all bathroom counters, and are sinks included in our 

contract, or provided by the plumber? 
a. Sinks in vanities are undermount solid surface sinks as specified in Section 

123600.  Fittings are provided by plumbing contractor. 
 

489. Passage B201A- Does this location get plastic laminate cabinets? 
a. See C1/A-407 for detail. 
 

490. Can the architect please provide window sill finish call outs on a floor plan, or are 
we to assume that every window gets a sill and it is solid surface? 
a. Every window has a sill which is solid surface. 
 

491. B6 on page A-409 calls for an epoxy resin top, and plastic laminate cabinets, is this a 
mistake?  Is it supposed to be scientific casework? 
a. B6 / A409 revised to show epoxy resin tops with wood cabinets 



 
492. Can elevations be provided in better detail of the lobby areas where there are 

wood/plam panels and wood wainscot?  Are there any details of the wood wainscot? 
I have located tags, but no description. 
a. See Addendum 9 - Sketch A 472 and A-784 
 

493. Wood baseboard is only tagged in a few locations, can that be detailed better? 
a. See Sheet I-001 WDB-2 f 
 

494. The Wood Panels in the auditorium may need to be partially if not fully fabricated 
on site, and permanently secured, not mounted on z-clips, is this acceptable? 
a. Alternative fabrication and installation methods will be considered as part of 

shop drawing review process. 
 

495. Specifications Section 105100, paragraph 3.04 Schedules shows locker Type B in D112 
Break Room. I don’t see any lockers in this room on Drawing A114 or A404. How 
many lockers are in this room? 
a. These lockers were added by addendum (See Addendum No 6 narrative).  (10) 

Type B lockers are required. 
 

496. Please provide a spec for the Fire Blanket Cabinets. 
a. See Section 104400 and Addendum No 7. 
 

497. Can we get a specification for the exterior PVC railings types 1 and 2 that are 
included in the carpentry scope? 
a. PVC Railing detailed on sheet A-504 is the same custom trim product referenced 

in Specification section 062000 
 

498. Item A7 in scope of work states “Provide wardrobe and closet specialties”. Please 
clarify what this package owns in the wardrobes and closets. 
a. The requirement for wardrobe and closet specialties has been deleted from the 

specialties contract.  See changes to the summary of work included in this 
addendum. 

 
499. D-24 states Provide exterior PVC Railing but no specs.  Drawing shows exterior 

railing Type 4 and Railing type 3. Where do we find where those railing types are ? 
a. PVC Railing detailed on sheet A-504 is the same custom trim product referenced 

in Specification section 062000 



 
500. Please provide make and model for Defibrillator and cabinet. 

a. See Addendum No 9 
 

501. There are two areas that look like they have architectural metal column covers but 
there is no keynote 5.1, 4, 5, or 6 identifying them as such: Drawing A116, Room 
B199F and Drawing A126, Room B299F.  Please advise if these are intended to be 
column covers and which keynote applies to them. Thanks. 
a. See Sheet A-494 issued in prior Addendum. 
 

502. Does any of the Exterior PVC Trim, Railings or Paneling get painted in the field? 
a. No. 
 

503. Does the metal mesh wrapped absorptive panels at the studio theater get painted in 
the field? 
a. Metal mesh is factory painted. 
 

504. Does any of the galvanized steel guardrail & handrail paint at loading dock area? See 
Page A-486 
a. Galvanized steel railings at loading area can remain unpainted. 
 

505. Are we to paint railing type 4 connected with PAC media center partial elevation 
added to sheet A-223/page A0? 
a. No - These railings may remain hot dipped galvanized. 
 

506. Who is responsible for staining wood base, WDB-1 & WDB-2? Is this by the 
Millwork contractor (prefinished)? Or, is it to be finished in the field by the painting 
contractor? 
a. Millwork is specified as shop-finished in Section 062000. 
 

507. Who is responsible for the Metal Coating? Is the painter responsible? If so, where is 
the HPC-1 High Performance Metal Coating Located? 
a. HPC-1 is not used.  Change north wall finish of Lobby C100B to “WD, P-1”.  In 

Finish Schedule Keynotes N7-N9, change “HPC” to “P-X” (color to be selected) 
 

508. In addendum 4 on page A-123 it tells us to go to page A448 and there is NO PAGE 
A448. Where do we find this detail on what page? 



a. Sheet A-448 was deleted.  Associated detail references should also be deleted.  
Details covering these areas have been provided in other sheets (A-532, A-533, 
etc)  

 
509. What package owns installation of the owner furnished monitor mounts per Keynote 

6.1? 
a. Contract D-24 : Carpentry is to provide blocking in the wall and installation of 

the monitor mount and smart TV per Scope Item 20.  Both the monitor mount 
and smart TV will be furnished by the owner. 

 
510. In the Paint Spec 099000-6 it says System I-8 wood floors transparent finish… Our 

question… Is the painting contractor responsible for this? If so where is this located. 
What sheet numbers do we look for this on? 
a. System I-8 (wood floors transparent finish) of the Paints and Coatings 

specification is to be provided by the wood floor installing contractor, Contract 
D-36 : Gymnasium Flooring. 

 
511. Is there any Transparent Finish Trim on the project that the painting contractor is 

responsible for? If so, where is it located. 
a. See I 001 General Finish Note D. 
 

512. Is the Painting contractor responsible for Painting System I-9 wood stage Opaque 
Finish. 
a. System I-9 (wood stage opaque finish) of the Paints and Coatings specification is 

to be provided by the wood floor installing contractor, Contract D-36 : 
Gymnasium Flooring. 

 
513. Where is System I-13 located? Chroma Key Finish… where is it on the project? 

a. This is the 'green screen' on one wall of the One-Touch Studio in Rooms C210B 
and B106. 

 
514. There is nothing in the spec to tell us what system we should use for the Exposed 

Structure Ceiling. Please What paint system should we use for the exposed structure 
ceiling painted? 
a. Use paint system according to substrate (I-3, I-5, etc) 
 



515. There are no clear defined areas on the Finish Schedule or the Material Legend to 
indicate where, if any Epoxy Paint is to be used. Please advise if there is any Epoxy 
Paint on the project and if so, where? 
a. No, there is no epoxy paint under Bid Pac C and D 
 

516. Is there any painting on exposed structure ceiling Expo (C) K13 Acoustic Treatment 
to exposed structure (are we supposed to paint the Expo C) 
a. K-13 is applied to decks and does not require additional painting; painting of 

steel framing members, exposed ductwork, conduits, piping, etc will still be 
required. 

 
517. Section 102800 seems to not match the drawings. Example drawings show hand 

dryers as item “L” but specs say “L” is a curtain rod 
a. Hand Dryers are Item H. 
 

518. Contract D-37 to include BIM? 
a. BIM services are not required from Contract D-37 : Specialties. 

 
519. Provide elevations for island casework in rooms B201 & B202. If there are un-

elevated islands elsewhere please elevate them as well. 
a. See Addendum No 9 for additional information on island casework 
 

520. Please find the attached tech sheet for the acoustic wall panels for Section 098400.  
Can you confirm Wenger is an acceptable manufacturer. 
a. Wenger is an acceptable substitute for barrel ceiling diffusers. 
 
 

521. On contract D-41 Partitions, how many marker boards/panels will be required on 
this partition?   Room C131/C130. 
a. See Addendum no 9. 
 

522. On contract D-38 Bleachers, how many rows of bleachers each side of court? And 
what is depth per row (24” or 26”)? 
a. See floor plans for seating configurations and seat counts. Bleachers on opposite 

sides of the court are the same (one side is shown retracted).  See bleacher 
specifications for row depth. 

 



523. Also, Addendum 8, #316 mentions changes to the specification 116625 but they are 
not included.  Will they be forthcoming? 
a. Changes to the summary of work for Contract D-38 : Gymnasium Equipment 

was provided on Page 9 of Addendum 8 and the revised summary of work is 
included in this addendum 9. 

 
524. For the exterior PVC railings, Addendum 8 item 292 refers us to 062000 Finish 

Carpentry for the specification. There is no PVC material in this spec section. Could 
it mean 066500 Plastic Simulated Wood Trim and we are to custom fabricate from 
this material? 
a. PVC Railing detailed on sheet A-504 is the same custom trim product referenced 

in Specification section 066500 
 

525. Fairview Addendum 8 Items 298 and 299.  Can you tell us what document these two 
items are referring to? 
a. The response to RFI 298 references a substitute fire stopping product.  The 

response to RFI 299 references a substitute wood laboratory casework 
manufacturer. 

 
526. Please verify that a solid surface threshold is intended in the Media Center room 

C210 at the circle shown on I-123. Solid surface thresholds are typically used at 
bathroom entrances. 
a. Change transition at LVT from TR-8 to TR-7. 
 

527. Contrary to the answer given, there are no wall mounted hooks depicted on H3/A-
407 or E3/A-408, just a note that says “wall mounted hooks provide blocking.” There 
are four hooks shown on D3/A-408 but not where the note is pointing to. 
a. Yes - there will be typical classroom hooks as indicated on H3/A-407, D3/ A-408 

and E3/ A-408 
 

528. Addendum #8 has added cementitious tile backer board to the carpentry package 
(modifications to specifications item 2). Could this be an error as it is usually in the 
drywall package which makes a lot more sense? 
a. This was an error in Addendum #8 and is rectified in the changes to the 

summary of work included in this addendum #9.  Contracts C-12 and D-25 : 
Metal Studs and Drywall are responsible for providing the cementitious backer 
board as part of their contract. 

 



529. The unframed mirrors are included in the Specialties package. Please provide a spec 
for these mirrors. They are shown in Toilets C114, C116 and C121. Also shown in 
Dressing Rooms C118 and C119. 
a. See Addendum no 9. 
 

530. Fitness D121 shows Tag 8.1 pointing to a dashed line on the northeast CMU wall. 
Should this be a wall of mirrors with Tag 8.2? 
a. Correct.  Change tag to 8.2. 
 

531. Do the exterior Glass Fiber Rein forced Exterior Concrete Columns get painted in the 
field? 
a. yes. See Specification Section 099000 
 

532. In the caulking package calls for the HM doors and frames to be done by that 
package…  Is that package going to caulk the window frames /vision panels? 
a. Contract C-14 : Joint Sealants will be providing caulk at the perimeter of the door 

frames, window frames, and vision panels. 
 

533. Corridor C301BB is shown as terrazzo on Sheet I-113, but is called out as resilient tile 
in the finish schedule.  The structural plans show this area as depressed for terrazzo 
floor.  Please advise as to what is correct. 
a. Corridor C301BB is to be terrazzo tile and base. 
 
 

534. Please reference sheet S132_Area B Roof Plan: they don’t call out any shaded area’s 
for Mansard Trusses, nor do they show any asterisks for the Cont. HSS that they bear 
on….however per the wall cuts 1 & 2/S514 – they show the Mansard Trusses & Cont. 
HSS…also they are shown on the Architectural Roof Plan per A-132.  Need to 
confirm that they are required. 
a. Mansard Trusses are to be provided in Areas A and B in the areas depicted on 

the Roof Plan A-132.  Refer to the “Typical Roof Truss Mansard Detail” on 
drawing S-511 for additional information on the steel framing required at these 
locations. 

 
535. Are roller shades required at clerestory frames and glass locations? 

a. No, roller shades are not required at the interior clerestory frames. 
 
 



MODIFICATIONS TO SPECIFICATIONS: 
1) BID PAC C – VOL 1 SPECIFICATION SECTION 004100 : Bid Form and Attachments – 

Contract D-22 : Masonry 
a. DELETE pages 004100-1 through 3 and REPLACE with revised Pages 004100-1 

through 3 attached to this addendum. 
- Added Alternate 37 : Provide Fire Rated Spray Foam Insulation at 

Mansards in Areas D, E, F, G, and H 
 

2) BID PAC C – VOL 1 SPECIFICATION SECTION 004100 : Bid Form and Attachments – 
Contract D-32 : Carpet & VCT 

a. DELETE pages 004100-81 through 83 and REPLACE with revised Pages 004100-1 
through 3 attached to this addendum. 

- Added Unit Price 15 : Price per Square Foot for Remedial Floor Coating 
or Sheet Membrane. 

 
3) BID PAC C – VOL 1 SPECIFICATION SECTION 004100 : Bid Form and Attachments – 

Contract D-33 : Ceramic Tile 
a. DELETE pages 004100-89 through 91 and REPLACE with revised Pages 004100-

89 through 91 attached to this addendum. 
- Added Unit Price 15 : Price per Square Foot for Remedial Floor Coating 

or Sheet Membrane. 
 

4) BID PAC C – VOL 1 SPECIFICATION SECTION 004100 : Bid Form and Attachments – 
Contract D-34 : Terrazzo Tile 

a. DELETE pages 004100-97 through 99 and REPLACE with revised Pages 004100-
97 through 99 attached to this addendum. 

- Added Unit Price 15 : Price per Square Foot for Remedial Floor Coating 
or Sheet Membrane. 

 
5) BID PAC C – VOL 1 SPECIFICATION SECTION 004100 : Bid Form and Attachments – 

Contract D-35 : Resinous Flooring 
a. DELETE pages 004100-105 through 107 and REPLACE with revised Pages 

004100-105 through 107 attached to this addendum. 
- Added Unit Price 15 : Price per Square Foot for Remedial Floor Coating 

or Sheet Membrane. 
 

6) BID PAC C – VOL 1 SPECIFICATION SECTION 004100 : Bid Form and Attachments – 
Contract D-36 : Gymnasium Flooring 

a. DELETE pages 004100-113 through 115 and REPLACE with revised Pages 
004100-113 through 115 attached to this addendum. 

- Added Unit Price 15 : Price per Square Foot for Remedial Floor Coating 
or Sheet Membrane. 

 



7) BID PAC C – VOL 1 SPECIFICATION SECTION 004100 : Bid Form and Attachments – 
Contract D-41 : Theatre Seating 

a. DELETE pages 004100-153 through 155 and REPLACE with revised Pages 
004100-153 through 155 attached to this addendum. 

- Added Alternate 38 : Provide Loose Audience Seating 
 
 

8) BID PAC C – VOL 1 SPECIFICATION SECTION 004100 : Bid Form and Attachments – 
Contract D-46 : Electrical 

a. DELETE pages 004100-193 through 195 and REPLACE with revised Pages 
004100-193 through 195 attached to this addendum. 

- Added Alternate 39 : Provide Lighting Fixtures to match Bid Package C 
 

9) BID PAC D – VOL 1 SPECIFICATION SECTION 011100 : Summary of Work  
a. This specification section has been modified to incorporate all modifications 

made in previous addenda.  Additional changes to the scopes of work included 
in this addendum are as follows: 

b. Contract D-22 : Masonry, Technical Specifications – ADD “Section 044301 Stone 
Masonry Veneer” 

c. Contract D-22 : Masonry, Technical Specifications – DELETE “Section 071113 
Bituminous Dampproofing” and “Section 071300 Sheet Waterproofing” 

d. Contract D-22 : Masonry, Bullet 5 – ADD “Provide spray polyurethane foam 
insulating air barrier applied behind vertical brick and stone surfaces and over 
CMU back-up and exterior sheathing board. This includes all exterior sheathing, 
whether behind masonry or not. Include spray insulation termination angles as 
needed for the spray foam insulation installation.” 

e. Contract D-22 : Masonry, Bullet 17 – DELETE “firesafing” and ADD “fire 
stopping”  

f. Contract D-22 : Masonry, ADD Bullet 33 – “Provide spray foam insulation (type 
7) behind cornices and under mansards in Areas A, B, and C as indicated.” 

g. Contract D-23 : Structural Steel, Bullet 5 – ADD “as required to meet OSHA 
requirements.” 

h. Contract D-23 : Structural Steel, DELETE Bullet 21 – “Provide supports for roof 
screens.  Metal wall panels to be provided by Contract C-15.” 

i. Contract D-24 : Carpentry and General Works, Technical Specifications – ADD 
“Section 066500 Plastic Simulated Wood Trim”. 

j. Contract D-24 : Carpentry and General Works, Technical Specifications – 
DELETE “Section 081613 FRP Flush Doors” 

k. Contract D-24 : Carpentry and General Works, Technical Specifications – ADD 
“Section 089100 Louvers” 

l. Contract D-24 : Carpentry and General Works, DELETE Bullet #2 and ADD “This 
Contract D-24 : Carpentry is to provide wood blocking at the exterior walls for 
windows, doors, louvers, and other openings.  Contract D-25 : Drywall is to 



provide exterior plywood sheathing and spacers at the walls and roofs along 
with all other exterior blocking integral to the roof and wall assemblies 
(including but not limited to: roof parapet blocking, roof blocking, blocking at 
the mansards, and blocking at curbs).” 

m. Contract D-24 : Carpentry and General Works, Bullet #9 – ADD “This Contract 
D-24 is to include an allowance of $20 per hook for the purchasing of the hooks.  
This Contract D-24 is to include installation of the wall hooks and the supply 
and installation of the associated finished backboard as part of their base bid.” 

n. Contract D-24 : Carpentry and General Works, DELETE Bullet #41, “Provide gate 
hardware.” 

o. Contract D-24 : Carpentry and General Works, DELETE Bullet #42, “Provide 
cementitious backer board for the wall tile installations.” 

p. Contract D-24 : Carpentry and General Works, ADD Bullet #43, “Provide 
Architectural Louvers.” 

q. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, Technical Specifications – DELETE 
“Section 052100 Steel Joists” 

r. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, Technical Specifications – DELETE 
“Section 053100 Steel Decking” 

s. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, Technical Specifications – DELETE 
“Section 055000 Metal Fabrications” 

t. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, Technical Specifications – DELETE 
“Section 071300 Sheet Waterproofing”  

u. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, Technical Specifications – DELETE 
“Section 092700 Glass-Fiber-Reinforced Gypsum Fabrications”  

v. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, Technical Specifications – DELETE 
“Section 090600 Finish Schedule”  

w. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, Technical Specifications – DELETE 
“Section 092210 Non-Load Bearing Wall Framing”  

x. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, Technical Specifications – DELETE 
“Section 092900 Gypsum Board”  

y. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, Bullet 16 – DELETE “firesafing” and 
ADD “fire stopping”  

z. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, DELETE Bullet #12  
aa. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, Bullet #17 - ADD Sub-bullet a, “The 

scaffolding will be equipped with access stairs and safety rail around the 
perimeter. The scaffolding will be setup in two stages. The first stage is full 
height to allow for the installation of mechanical, plumbing, electrical, fire 
protection, and special systems. The scaffolding will be within 6 feet of the 
bottom of the roof joists. The second stage is to lower the scaffolding to allow 
for the installation of the ceiling, lights, audio visual and other equipment. The 
scaffolding will be just below the bottom of the lowest device. Access  to  the  
sidewalls  of  the  PAC,  while  the  scaffold  is installed, will be required.” 



bb. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, Bullet #23 - ADD “This Contract D-25 : 
Drywall is to provide exterior plywood sheathing and spacers at the walls and 
roofs along with all other exterior blocking integral to the roof and wall 
assemblies (including but not limited to: roof parapet blocking, roof blocking, 
blocking at the mansards, blocking at the roof perimeter, and blocking at curbs).  
Contract D-24 : Carpentry is to provide wood blocking at the exterior walls for 
windows, doors, louvers, and other openings.” 

cc. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, ADD Bullet #38, “Provide air barrier 
on outside face of gypsum sheathing of exterior walls where spray 
polyurethane foam insulating air barrier is not indicated.” 

dd. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, ADD Bullet #39, “Provide water 
resistive barrier sheet on exterior walls under exterior cladding where 
indicated.” 

ee. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, ADD Bullet #40, “Provide cementitious 
backer board for the wall tile installations.” 

ff. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, ADD Bullet #41, “Provide additional 
drywall layers and framing of the auditorium walls as described on Sheet A-
368.  An updated drawing with more detail will be provided in Addendum #10 
to be issued on Monday, April 16.  Reference Sketch SK-A368-A included in 
Addendum #9 for preliminary design.” 

gg. Contract D-25 : Metal Studs and Drywall, ADD Bullet #42, “Mineral wool 
insulation behind the cornices and under the mansards is deleted and not 
required of Contract D-25.  This Contract D-25 is to provide 5’8” sheathing in 
these areas as detailed.” 

hh. Contract D-27 : Glass & Glazing, Technical Specifications – ADD “Section 081613 
FRP Flush Doors”  

ii. Contract D-27 : Glass & Glazing, Technical Specifications – ADD “Section 085113 
Aluminum Windows”  

jj. Contract D-27 : Glass & Glazing, Bullet #9 – ADD “and FRP”  
kk. Contract D-27 : Glass & Glazing, ADD Bullet #31 – “Provide delegated design, 

data and submittal information related to the Scope of this Contract signed and 
sealed by a Professional Engineer as required by the Contract Documents.”  

ll. Contract D-28 : Casework and Millwork, Technical Specifications – DELETE 
“Section 060050 Basic Wood and Plastic Materials and Methods”  

mm. Contract D-28 : Casework and Millwork, Technical Specifications – ADD 
“Section 099000 Paints and Coatings”  

nn. Contract D-28 : Casework and Millwork, DELETE Bullet 21.  
oo. Contract D-28 : Casework and Millwork, ADD Bullet 22 - “Provide Countertops 

and Backsplashes”  
pp. Contract D-28 : Casework and Millwork, ADD Bullet 23 - “Provide Wood Stair 

Risers”  
qq. Contract D-29 : Paint & Wallcovering, Technical Specifications – DELETE 

“Section 078400 Firestopping” 



rr. Contract D-29 : Paint & Wallcovering, Bullet #1, DELETE “and vinyl or fabric 
wall covering” 

ss. Contract D-29 : Paint & Wallcovering, DELETE Bullet #19. 
tt. Contract D-30 : Acoustical Ceilings & Wall Panels, Technical Specifications - 

DELETE “Section 072100 Thermal Insulation” 
uu. Contract D-30 : Acoustical Ceilings & Wall Panels, Technical Specifications - 

DELETE “Section 079513 Expansion Joint Cover Assemblies” 
vv. Contract D-30 : Acoustical Ceilings & Wall Panels, ADD Bullet 19 – “Provide 

barrel ceiling sound diffusers” 
ww. Contract D-31 : Specialty Ceilings, Technical Specifications - DELETE “Section 

072100 Thermal Insulation” 
xx. Contract D-31 : Specialty Ceilings, Technical Specifications - DELETE “Section 

079513 Expansion Joint Cover Assemblies” 
yy. Contract D-32 : Carpet & VCT, Technical Specifications - “Section 096510 Rubber 

Flooring” 
zz. Contract D-32 : Carpet & VCT, Bullet 5 – ADD “and millwork rubber base.” 
aaa. Contract D-32 : Carpet & VCT, DELETE Bullet 7 and REPLACE with the 

following: “Provide cleaning, waxing and protection.  Protection will be with 
reinforced kraft paper, cardboard, or Masonite.” 

bbb. Contract D-32 : Carpet & VCT, DELETE Bullet 16 
ccc. Contract D-32 : Carpet & VCT, ADD Bullet #20, “Provide walk-off carpet tile.” 
ddd. Contract D-32 : Carpet & VCT, ADD Bullet #21, “Provide rubber stair 

treads and risers” 
eee. Contract D-32 : Carpet & VCT, ADD Bullet #22, “Coordinate with Structural 

Plans S114, S115, S116 for the extents of the additional terrazzo tile areas 
included in Alternate #14.” 

fff. Contract D-33 : Ceramic Tile, Bullet 17 – ADD “Provide cleaning, waxing and 
protection.  Protection will be with reinforced kraft paper, cardboard, or 
Masonite.” 

ggg. Contract D-33 : Ceramic Tile, DELETE Bullet 22. 
hhh. Contract D-34 : Terrazzo Tile, REPLACE Bullet 3 with, “Provide vapor retarding 

sealer prior to terrazzo application, as required by specifications or 
manufacturer’s installation instructions.” 

iii. Contract D-34 : Terrazzo Tile, Bullet 6 – ADD “Provide cleaning, waxing and 
protection.  Protection will be with reinforced kraft paper, cardboard, or 
Masonite.” 

jjj. Contract D-34 : Terrazzo Tile, DELETE Bullet 13. 
kkk. Contract D-34 : Terrazzo Tile, ADD Bullet 17, “Provide precast cement terrazzo 

treads and landings.” 
lll. Contract D-34 : Terrazzo Tile, ADD Bullet 18, “Coordinate with Structural Plans 

S114, S115, S116 for the extents of the additional terrazzo tile included in 
Alternate #14.” 



mmm. Contract D-34 : Terrazzo Tile, ADD Bullet 19, “Provide a $30,000 
allowance to supply and install the two (2) 6-color logos at the gymnasium 
lobbies. 

nnn. Contract D-35 : Resinous Flooring, REPLACE Bullet 3 with, “Provide vapor 
retarding sealer prior to terrazzo application, as required by specifications or 
manufacturer’s installation instructions.” 

ooo. Contract D-35 : Resinous Flooring, Bullet 6 – ADD “Provide cleaning, waxing 
and protection.  Protection will be with reinforced kraft paper, cardboard, or 
Masonite.” 

ppp. Contract D-35 : Resinous Flooring, DELETE Bullet 12. 
qqq. Contract D-36 : Gymnasium Flooring, DELETE Bullet 9. 
rrr. Contract D-36 : Gymnasium Flooring – ADD Bullet 13 – “Provide wall base 

associated with wood strip flooring.” 
sss. Contract D-37 : Specialties, DELETE Bullet 3. 
ttt. Contract D-37 : Specialties, Bullet #2, ADD “Display cases and trophy cases to be 

provided by Contract D-28 : Casework.” 
uuu. Contract D-37 : Specialties, Bullet #7, DELETE “Provide wardrobe and closet 

specialties.” 
vvv. Contract D-37 : Specialties, Bullet #9, ADD “Provide all supplementary steel as 

needed to hang partitions from structural support steel, provided by the 
Structural Steel Contractor. It is assumed, no additional steel will be required 
below structural support steel. If so, it will be provided by this contractor.” 

www. Contract D-37 : Specialties, Bullet #12, ADD “Including FRP Paneling” 
xxx. Contract D-38 : Gymnasium Equipment – ADD Bullet 13 – “Provide BIM 

services as detailed in spec section 013700 BIM Execution Plan.” 
yyy. Contract D-39 : Theatrical Audio/Visual Equipment, Bullet 3, DELETE the first 

sentence and REPLACE with: “Rough power wiring to be provided by Contract 
D-48, network cabling to be provided by Contract C-21.” 

zzz. Contract D-39 : Theatrical Audio/Visual Equipment, ADD Bullet 13, “Provide 
anchoring devices, fasteners, inserts, and other related items associated with the 
installation of the above items.” 

aaaa. Contract D-40 : Theatrical Rigging and Equipment, Technical 
Specifications – DELETE “Section 116143 Theatrical Draperies” 

bbbb. Contract D-40 : Theatrical Rigging and Equipment, ADD Bullet 11, 
“Provide Orchestra Shell as part of Alternates 16-A and 16-B.  Coordinate 
electrical requirements with Contract D-46 Electrical.” 

cccc. Contract D-40 : Theatrical Rigging and Equipment, ADD Bullet 12, “Provide 
tracked variable acoustics curtains” 

dddd. Contract D-41 : Theatre Seating, ADD Bullet #13, “Provide loose audience 
seating as part of Alternate 38. 

eeee. Contract D-44 : Mechanical, Delete the following from the Technical 
Specification Sections List: 

- Division 11 Equipment 



- Division 14 Conveying Equipment 
- Division 21 Fire Suppression 
- Division 27  Communications 
- Division 28 Electronic Safety and Security 

ffff. Contract D-44 : Mechanical, Bullet 10 – DELETE “firesafing” and ADD “fire 
stopping”  

gggg. Contract D-46 : Electrical, DELETE Bullet #1-b and replace with the 
following: “Lighting and controls/switches within the MS Cafeteria D101, 
Women D102, Men D104, Jan D102A, Family Restroom D104A, Café B109, 
Corridor B100G, and Stair H is to be provided by this contract D-46.  Power 
wiring will be provided to a junction box in these areas by Contract C-21.  This 
Contract D-46 is to make all final connections for lighting in these areas. Within 
this area, Contract C-21 is to provide power to RTU D-3 as indicated.” 

hhhh. Contract D-46 : Electrical, Bullet 13 – DELETE “firesafing” and ADD “fire 
stopping”  

iiii. Contract D-48 : Testing & Balancing, ADD Bullet 6 – “Submissions will be 
reviewed once and any resubmittals will be reviewed once. Any other 
submittals will be billed to the contractor at the Engineers standard rates. Please 
thoroughly review all submissions prior to forwarding to avoid these costs.” 

jjjj. Contract D-48 : Testing & Balancing, ADD Bullet 7 – “This contractor has been 
allotted 60 days to complete all work and provide final, sealed balancing report 
by the Construction Manager. This contractor will need to work closely with the 
Construction Manager and all MEP trades to sequence work so that the 
completion of the balancing is completed in a manner that does not delay 
acceptance from NCC or ASD.”  

kkkk. Contract D-48 : Testing & Balancing, ADD Bullet 8 – “Provide 
confirmation of duct testing completed by Mechanical Contractor.” 

llll. Contract D-48 : Testing & Balancing, ADD Bullet 9 – “This contractor must 
provide all lifts or scaffold means to access all elements.” 

mmmm. Contract D-48 : Testing & Balancing, ADD Bullet 10 – “This is not a secure 
site. All contractors are responsible for concealing, locking and/or removing 
any materials on a daily basis. ASD and EDiS will not be responsible for any 
lost tools, materials or equipment.” 

nnnn. Remove existing specification section 011100 and replace with the 
attached revised specification section 011100, Summary of Work 

 
10) BID PAC D – VOL 1 SPECIFICATION SECTION 012200 : Unit Prices 

a. ADD Unit Price #15 : Price per Square Foot for Remedial Floor Coating or Sheet 
Membrane. 

 
11) BID PAC D – VOL 1 SPECIFICATION SECTION 012300 : Alternates  

a. Remove existing specification section 012300 and replace with the attached 
revised specification section 012300, Alternates. 



b. Additional changes to the Alternates section included in this addendum are as 
follows: 

- DELETE Alternate #6 in its entirety. 
- Alternate #31 – ADD to Base Bid, “Provide Tracked Variable Acoustics 

Curtains as Shown.” 
- ADD Alternate #37: Provide Fire Rated Spray Foam Insulation at 

Mansards in Areas D, E, F, G, and H  
a.  Base Bid: Contract C-12 is to provide vapor barrier and mineral wool 

insulation behind cornice and under mansard as indicated. 
b. Alternate: Contract D-22 : Masonry is to provide fire rated spray foam 

insulation behind cornice and under mansards in Areas D, E, F, G, and H 
to match Areas A, B, and C. 

- ADD Alternate #38: Provide Loose Audience Seating 
a.  Base Bid: Provide Fixed and Removable Audience Seating. 
b. Alternate: In addition to Fixed and Removable Audience Seating, provide 

Loose Audience seating in quantities shown on the drawings in finishes 
and shapes to match fixed seating. 

- ADD Alternate #39: Provide Lighting Fixtures to match Bid Package C 
a.  Base Bid: Provide all lighting by approved manufacturers as specified. 
b. Alternate: Provide lighting fixtures A, AE, B, H, H2, and U as follows: 
   A = RAB Lighting : EDGE2x4-50N/D10/10 YR NO 

COMPROMISE 
   AE= RAB Lighting : EDGE2x4-50N/D10/10 YR NO 

COMPROMISE 
   B = RAB Lighting : EDGE2x2-40N/D10/10 YR NO 

COMPROMISE 
   H = RAB Lighting : WPLED10 
   H2 = RAB Lighting : WPLED13 
   U = 

 Axis Lighting : 
TB3DILED/350/525/80/35K/SO/SO/ADVISE/ADVISE/UNV/DP/1/ADVISE 

 
All other lighting to be by approved manufacturers as specified. 

 
12) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 055800 : Architectural Metal Column 

Covers 
a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 

addendum. 
 

13) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 080671 : Hardware Sets 
a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 

addendum. 
 

14) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 088300 : Mirrors 
a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 

addendum. 



 
15) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 093000 : Tiling 

a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 
addendum. 

 
16) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 096500 : Resilient Flooring 

a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 
addendum. 

 
17) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 096633 : Cement Terrazzo Tiles 

a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 
addendum. 

 
18) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 096700 : Troweled Seamless Flooring 

a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 
addendum. 

 
 

19) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 096813 : Tile Carpeting 
a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 

addendum. 
 

20) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 098400 : Acoustic Room Components 
a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 

addendum. 
 

21) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 101101 : Visual Display Boards and 
Display Cases 

a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 
addendum. 

 
22) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 102113 : Plastic Toilet Compartments 

a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 
addendum. 

 
23) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 104400 : Fire Protection Specialties 

a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 
addendum. 

 
24) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 102239 : Folding Panel Partitions 

a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 
addendum. 

 



25) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 102800 : Toilet Accessories 
a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 

addendum. 
 

26) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 105100 : Metal Lockers 
a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 

addendum. 
 

27) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 115313 : Fume Hoods 
a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 

addendum. 
 

28) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 116133 : Rigging Systems 
a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 

addendum. 
 

29) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 116625 : Gymnasium Equipment 
a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 

addendum. 
 

30) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 122413 : Window Treatment – Roller 
Shades 

a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 
addendum. 

 
31) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 123553.19 : Wood Laboratory 

Casework 
a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 

addendum. 
 

32) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 123600 : Countertops, Backsplashes, 
and Window Stools 

a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 
addendum. 

 
33) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 126113 : Fixed Audience Seating 

a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 
addendum. 

 
34) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 126123 : Telescoping Chair Platforms 

a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 
addendum. 

 
35) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 126613 : Telescoping Bleachers 



a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 
addendum. 

 
36) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 230900 : Automatic Temperature 

Control 
a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 

addendum. 
 

37) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 260961 : Performance Lighting Systems 
a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 

addendum. 
 

38) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 262861 : Company Switches 
a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 

addendum. 
 

39) BID PAC D – VOL 2 SPECIFICATION SECTION 274117 : Sound, Video & 
Communication Systems 

a. See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 
addendum. 

 
 
 

MODIFICATIONS TO DRAWINGS: 
  
1) See Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A attached to this 

addendum. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

• Contract D-22 : Masonry Bid Form : Specification Section 004100-1 through 3 
• Contract D-32 : Carpet & VCT Bid Form : Specification Section 004100-81 through 83 
• Contract D-33 : Ceramic Tile Bid Form : Specification Section 004100-89 through 91 
• Contract D-34 : Terrazzo Tile Bid Form : Specification Section 004100-97 through 99 
• Contract D-35 : Resinous Flooring Bid Form : Specification Section 004100-105 through 

107 
• Contract D-36 : Gymnasium Flooring Bid Form : Specification Section 004100-113 

through 115 
• Contract D-41 : Theatre Seating Bid Form : Specification Section 004100-153 through 155 
• Contract D-46 : Electrical Bid Form : Specification Section 004100-193 through 195 
• Specification Section 011100 : Summary of Work 
• Specification Section 012300 : Alternates 

 



• Addendum 9 dated April 12, 2018 issued by ABHA/BSA+A 
 

• SPECIFICATION SECTION 080671 Hardware Sets 
• SPECIFICATION SECTION 088300 Mirrors 
• SPECIFICATION SECTION 116133 Rigging Systems 
• SPECIFICATION SECTION 126113 Fixed Audience Seating  
• SPECIFICATION SECTION 126623 Telescoping Chair Platforms 
• SPECIFICATION SECTION 260961 Performance Lighting Systems  
• SPECIFICATION SECTION 262861 Company Switches 
• SPECIFICATION SECTION 274117 Sound, Video & Communication Systems 

 
• SHEET A-126 - SECOND FLOOR PLAN - AREA 'F' 
• SHEET A-351 WALL SECTIONS 
• SHEET A-403 - TYPICAL CLASSROOM PLANS AND ELEVATIONS 
• SHEET A-431 - ENLARGED THEATER PLAN - ORCH- PIT 
• SHEET A-435 - ENLARGED THEATER PLAN - CATWALK 
• SHEET A-437 - ENLARGED THEATER RCP - ORCHESTRA 
• SHEET A-438 - ENLARGED THEATER RCP - BALCONY  
• SHEET A-441 - ENLARGED STAGE HOUSE PLAN-RCP - STAGE  
• SHEET A-445 - ENLARGED THEATER SECTION 
• SHEET A-446 - ENLARGED THEATER SECTIONS 
• SHEET A-447 - ENLARGED THEATER SECTIONS 
• SHEET A-452 - ENLARGED STUDIO THEATER RCP & SECTION 
• SHEET A-472 PAC LOBBY INTERIOR ELEVATIONS 
• SHEET A-535 - THEATER DETAILS - CATWALKS AND GRIDIRON DETAILS 
• SHEET A-536 - CATWALKS AND GRIDIRON DETAILS 
• SHEET A-601 - DOOR SCHEDULE 
• SHEET A-602 - DOOR SCHEDULE 

 
• SKETCHES A-770, A-778, A-781 THROUGH A-784, A-790 
• SK-A368-A : PAC Side Wall Shaping Diagram 

 
• SHEET S-123 - SECOND FLOOR / LOW ROOF FRAMING PLAN - AREA C 
• SHEET S-133 ROOF FRAMING PLAN – AREA C 
• SHEET S-306 PARTIAL PLANS 
• SHEET S-308 PARTIAL PLANS 
• SHEET S-532 FRAMING SECTIONS AND DETAILS 
• SHEET S-533 FRAMING SECTIONS AND DETAILS 
• SHEET S-534 FRAMING SECTIONS AND DETAILS 
• SHEET S-535 FRAMING SECTIONS AND DETAILS 

 
• SKETCHES S-753 THROUGH S-763 

 



• SHEET TR-110 THEATER RIGGING PLANS 
 

• SKETCHES E-715 THROUGH E-716 
 

 
End of Addendum No. 9 

 
 

All other terms and conditions remain the same. 
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